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8. Whether any property or assets (‘Capital Assets’) have been created or acquired through CSR amount spent in the
Financial Year (asset-wise details): No

a) Short Particulars of the Capital Asset [including complete address and location of the Capital Assets) & PIN Code of the Capital Assets
b) | Dateof creation oracquisition of the Capital Asset(s)

c) | Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of Capital Asset

d) Detaits of the entity or authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.
{CSR Registration No., Name and Registered Address)

9. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5) :
The Company was unable to identify a specified project within scheduled time.

On behalf of Board of Directors
For RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited

PP

Chief Financial Officer Director
Date: 27 May 2025 DIN: 10641934
Place: Gurugram

DIN: 06500871
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
Report on the audit of financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited (the
“Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), the statement of cash flow and the statement of changes in
equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the ‘financial
statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended,
(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its
profit (including other comprehensive loss), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SA) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Director Report is expected to be made available to us after the date
of this Auditors’ Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
Page 1 of 13
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statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When
we read Director Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of the Management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant
Rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and board of Director’s are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
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of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management .

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement

on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books. except for the matter stated in paragraph
2(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014;
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The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant Rules issued there under.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 &
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 2(i)(vi) below on reporting under rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B” of this Report.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2025; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There is no amount required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the Note 51 (vi) to the financial statements no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the Note 51 (vii) to the financial statements no funds have been received by the company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

V. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and that has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software,
except that the audit trail is not maintained in case of modification by certain users with specific
access and the audit trail is not maintained for direct database changes. During the course of
performing our procedures except the aforesaid instances, we did not notice any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with, or not preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention."

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N/N500441

Amit Goel

AMIT GOEL
Partner
Membership No. 500607
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 27, 2025
UDIN: 25500607BMLATO1201
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories
Limited dated May 27, 2025.

Report on the matters specified in paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the
Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section.

(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, property, plant and equipment have been
physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were
identified on such verification .

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) are held
in the name of the Company.

(d) Accordingtothe information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and
equipment or Intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or are
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. No material Discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(b) As disclosed in Note 50 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions during
the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The quarterly
returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks and financial institutions are not in
agreement with the books of accounts (refer note 50 of the financial statements) of the Company
and the details are as follows;
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Amount in lakhs

Quarter ending

Value per books of
account

Value per quarterly
return/statement

Discrepancy
(give details)

For reportable total class of current asset and cur

rent liabilities (net)

June 30, 2024 1,757.78 1698.00 59.78
September 30, 2024 1,884.02 1,228.94 655.08
December 31, 2024 1,589.48 1,043.50 545.98
March 31, 2025 1,410.40 1,378.15 32.25

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, during the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the
nature of loans, stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clauses 3(iii)(a) to
3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section
185 and Section 186 of the Act. The Company has not given any loan which is covered under the
provision of Section 185 of the Act. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

V. The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Act in respect of the Company’s products to which the said rules are made applicable and are of
the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed records have been made and maintained. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the said records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

vii. (a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the Company is generally regular in depositing its undisputed statutory dues including
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues, as applicable,
with the appropriate authorities during the year and there are no such undisputed amounts
payable which have remained outstanding as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable .
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(b) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues in respect of goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom,
duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction,
previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of other borrowings or payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company
examined by us, the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or Government or any government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company
examined by us, the Company has not taken any term loan during the year. However the Company
has taken a term loan in earlier years and it was applied for the purpose for which it was obtained.
Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company
examined by us, no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by
the Company.

(e) &(f)The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer and term loans. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company ,the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares /fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under
audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the

information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

Page 8 of 13



Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

5SS KOTHARI MEHTA
& CO. LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that
during the year, a report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, in Form
ADT-4, as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors Rules), 2014 was not
required to be filed with the Central Government. Hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c ) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle
blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us during the course of
audit, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act, where
applicable, and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required
by the applicable Indian accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, the Company
does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system under
the provisions of Section 138 of the Act and accordingly the requirement to report under clause
3(xiv)(a) and 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to under section 192 of the Act.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtained a
valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) ( c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that
there is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on

clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year as well as in the immediately
preceding financial year.
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There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
disclosed in note 48 to the financial statements, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to
be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Act, in compliance with second proviso to
sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 42 to the financial
statements.

(b)According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not undertaken
any ongoing project during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(b) of
the Order is not applicable for the year.

The Company is not required to prepare the consolidated financial statements and accordingly the
requirement to report on Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N/N500441

Amit Goel

AMIT GOEL
Partner
Membership No. 500607

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 27, 2025
UDIN: 25500607BMLATO01201
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories
Limited on its financial statements dated May 27, 2025.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act as
referred to in paragraph 2(g) of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of RHI Magnesita Seven
Refractories Limited as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
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Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and

c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
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by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAI.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N/N500441

Amit Goel

AMIT GOEL
Partner
Membership No. 500607

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: May 27, 2025
UDIN: 25500607BMLAT01201
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RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
CIN:- U74999DL2016PLC309327
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

{X in lakhs)
Particula; Notes — ol
e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assets
Non - current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 3 2,201.88 2,116.18
{b} Right-of-use-assets a4 169.10 223.77
{c) Capital work - in - progress S 12.16 139.37
{d) Other intangible assets 6 6.10 7.78
{e} Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 7 12.74 11.45
{f) Other non-current assets 2 13.73 391
Total non-current assets 2,415.71 2,502.45
Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 2,462.32 1,400.39
{b) Financial assets 10
(i) Trade receivables 1,689.30 1,687.77
{ii} Cash and cash equivalents 216.95 0.10
(i} Other financial assets 15.97 17.11
{c} Current tax assets (net} 11 0.09
(d) Other current assets 12 126.77 46.64
Total current assets 4,511.40 3,152.02
Total assets 6,927.11 5,654.47
Equity and liabilities
Equity
{a) Equity share capital 13 2,000.00 2,000.00
(b} Other equity 14 1,353.52 73511
Tatal equity 3,353.52 2,735.11
Liabilities
Non - current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities 15
{i) Borrowings - 341.96
{ii} Lease liabilities 4 146.97 208.29
{b) Employee benefit obligations 16 - 3242
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17 2832 7275
Other non-current liabilities 18 171
Total non current liabilities 187.00 655.42
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 i) 347.83 617.45
{i) Lease liabilities 4 65.66 68.04
{iii) Trade payables 19 {ii)
-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises 447.68 344.48
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 2,29354 1,00021
micro enterprises and small enterprises
{iv) Other financial liabilities 19 (1ii) 75.72 155.19
{b) Contract liabilities 20 58.35 2477
{c) Employee benefit obligations 21 57.10 5.96
{d) Other current liabilities 22 40.71 45,19
{e) Current Tax Liabilities (Net} 23 - 2.65
Total current liabilities 3,386.59 2,263.94
Tatal Equity & Liabilities 6,927.11 5.654.47
Material accounting policies 182

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date

Far 5 S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000756N / N500441

Amit Goel =

Amit Goel
Partner
Membership No. 500607

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 27, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of

HI Magnesita Seven Refr

@~

P d Sagar
Director
DIN: 06500871

W

Mangj Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2025

Limited

GiyA e

Director

Did: 10641934~ A
%) ‘

Kirti Bajaj

Company Secretary
{ACS - A71440)




RH) Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
CIN:- U74999D12016PLC309327

Statement of Prafit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2025

[Xin lakhs]
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars fletes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
income
I Revenue from aperatians 24 12,726.25 10,090.01
I Other income 25 12.66 1290
{ll Total income {I + 11) 12,738.91 10,102.92
IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 26 8,961.64 6,543.50
Purchases of stock in trade 27 612.37 41230
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in 28 (149.21) (168.39)
progress and stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense 29 528.08 564.91
Finance costs 30 105.58 149 84
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 276.80 24282
Other expenses 32 1,552.37 1,550.53
Total expenses 11,887.63 9,295.51
Vv Profit before tax (H-IV) B51.28 807.40
VI Tax expense 33
- Current tax 27333 225.08
- Deferred tax {43.45) (8.55)
Vil Profit for the year {V - VI) 621.40 590.86
VIl Other Comprehensive income
- Re-measurement gains/ {losses) on defined
benefit plans {3.99) 006
- Deferred tax relating ta items that will not be
reclassified to prafit or loss 1.00 {0.02)
IX Total comprehensive Income for the year (VII + VIiI) 61B.41 590.90
X Basic earnings per equity share - {Face value of Rs. 10 each share) {Rs.) 34 311 2.95
Diluted earnings per equity share - {Face value of Rs. 10 each share) (Rs.}
182

Materiai accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date
For 5 S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000756N / N500441

Amit Goel

Amit Goel
Partner
Membership No. 500607

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 27, 2025

For and an behaif of the Board of Directors of
RHI Magnasita Seven Refractories Limited

[

rmad
th f
DIN: 06500871

o

Marig Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date; May 27, 2025

<

Azim Syed
Director
DIN: 10641934

Kirti Bajaj
Company Secretary
(ACS - A71440)
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RH! Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
CIN:- U74999DL2016PLC309327
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(% in lakhs)
. For the year ended  For the year ended
Ranicglars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 851.28 807 40
Adjustments for ;
Add : Depreciation and amortisation 276.80 242.83
Add : Finance caost 105.58 149.84
Add : Bad debts written off 143.10 0.60
Add : Provision for doubtful debt {109.16) 118.66
Add: Loss on property, plant and equipment sold / scrapped (Net) 5.28 .
Add: Old balances written off 2.78
Less: Interest income (0.76) (6.39)
Operating profit befare warking capital changes 1,274.90 1,312.94
Adjustments for working capital changes:
{Increase} / Decrease in trade and other receivables (net) (35.48} 59.50
Increase in ather financial assets {0.15) {1.53)
{Increase) / Decrease in other current and non-current assets (78.73) 54.45
Increase in [nventories {1,061.93) {129.49)
Increase / {Decrease) in trade payable and other financial liabilities 1,305.75 {547.79)
Increase in provisions and other current liabilities 43.88 30.64
Increase in other non-current liabilities 1171 -
Cash generated fram operations 1,459.95 778.72
Income tax paid (Net) (276.07) {131.55)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 1,183.88 647.17
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Interest income 0.76 6.39
Purchase of property, plant & equipment including CWIP {190.31) (233.48)
Proceeds received on maturity of fixed depasits - 64.64
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (189.55) {162.45)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of term loan borrowings (528.00) (440.00)
Proceeds from bank cash credits {76.36) 82.22
Interest paid {81.10) (114.89)
Repayment of principal component of lease liabilities (68 84) (52.44)
Repayment of interest component of lease liabilities (23.18) {27.72)
Net cash used in financing activities {C) {777.48) {552.83)
Net Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 216 85 {68.11)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.10 68.21
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 216.95 0.10
Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 10 (ii))
Balances with schedule banks
- an current accounts 216.95 0.10
216.95 0.10

The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘indirect method’ as set out in Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flo
The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Ca. LLP

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No. 000756N / N500441 | Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
Dby sk ot
AmitGoel I - X @Ugﬁ\:
]
Amit Goel Azim Sye: <
Partner Direcior Director

Membership No. 500607

DIN: 06500871 DIN:]O&#]QNQ%- A e
L2 RN

Place: Ahmedabad Marjoj Gupta Kirti Bajaj
Date: May 27, 2025 Chigf Financial Officer Company Secretary
(ACS - A71440)

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2025




RHI Magnesita Seven Refractaries Limited

CIN:- U74999D12016PLC309327

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Z in lakhs)

A Equity share capital*

Balance as at April 01, | Issued during the | Balance asat March | Balance as at April 01, | Issued during the | Balance as at March
Particulars 2023 year 31,2024 2024 year 31, 2025
Amount| Amount Amount;
Equity share capital 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 - 2,000.00
B Other equity*
Particulars Reserves and surplus Other Total
comprehensive
Retained earnings income - Reserve

Balance as at April 01, 2023 141.53 2,68 144.21

Profit for the year 590.86 0,04 590.90

Balance as at March 31, 2024 732.39 2.72 735.11

Balance as at April 01, 2024 732.39 2.72 735.11

Profit for the year 621.40 {2.99) 61841
]Balam:e as at March 31, 2025 1,353.79 {0.27) 1,353.52

*Refer note no. 13 and 14

As per our report of even date

For S § Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000756N / N500441

[E————

Amit

Goel [ —

Amit Goel
Partner
Membership No. 500607

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 27, 2025

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited

Parmod 5383 & Hﬁed

Dirtctor Director
DIN: 06500871 DIN: 10641934

-
Manoj Gupta Kirti Bajaj
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(ACS - A71440)

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 27, 2025




RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
CIN: U74999DL2016PLC309327
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1. Corporate Information
The Company was incorporated on December 16, 2016. The Company is in the business of
refractory manufacturing, sales and allied services. The Company has its registered and
corporate office at 4, Scindia House, Connaught Place, New Delhi-110001 and plant at Katni
(Madhya Pradesh).

The Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue
on May 27, 2025.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention
The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

(ii) New and amended standards adopted by the Company:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Rules, 2015 via notifications dated August 12, 2024, and September 09, 2024, to introduce
the new Ind AS 117 i.e "Insurance Contracts" and amended the Ind AS 116 i.e. Leases,

respectively. Both are effective from April 01, 2024.

This new standard and the aforesaid amendment did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised and are not expected to affect the current or future periods.

(i) Functional and presentation currency:
The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.) which is the functional currency

of the Company. All amounts are rounded to two decimal places to the nearest lakhs, unless
otherwise stated.




RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
CIN: U74999DL2016PLC309327
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.2

(iv) Current versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule il to the Companies Act,
2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets
and liabilities.

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

The preparation of Financial Statements requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements and the results of
operations during the reporting period. The actual results could differ from those estimates.
Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, the management has made the
following estimates, assumptions and judgements, which have significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the Financial Statements:

(i) Property, plant and equipment

The management engages an internal technical team to assess the remaining useful lives and
residual value of property, plant and equipment. The management believes that the assigned
useful lives and residual value are reasonable.

(ii) Intangibles assets

Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets. The
management believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.

(i) Leases

Ind As 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a
lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is
reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment of the expected lease term on a lease-
by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend
or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company
considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease
term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset
to the Company’s operations.




RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
CIN: U74999DL2016PLC309327
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(iv) Income taxes

The management’s judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and
deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets / liabilities. The factors used in estimates may differ
from the actual outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported
in the Financial Statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

(v) Contingencies

The management’s judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if
any, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to
predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

(vi) Allowance for doubtful trade receivables

Trade receivables are stated at their amortised cost as reduced by appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible.

2.3 Material Accounting Policies
(i) Property Plant and Equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. The gain or loss arising on the-disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Subsequent costs are capitalised or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.




RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
CIN: U74999DL2016PLC309327
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on Property, Plant and equipment is provided on straight-line basis over the
useful lives of assets as determined on the basis of technical estimates which are different
from the useful lives as prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on
past experience and internal technical evaluation, the management believes that these useful
lives represent the appropriate period of usage and therefore, considered to be appropriate
for charging depreciation.

Class of assets Estimated useful life

Leasehold Land Amortised over the period of lease
Plant and machinery 3-15 years

Computer 3-6 years

Buildings 30 years

Furniture & Fixtures 10 years

Office equipment 5 years

(i)

Assets residual values, depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed at the end of
financial year considering the physical condition of the assets or whenever there are indicators
for review and residual life is adjusted prospectively.

Intangible Assets

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is
probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and
the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

At initial recognition, the separately acquired intangible assets are recognised at cost.
Following initial recognition, the intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date they are available for use. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year
end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates,
the amortisation period is changed accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

a) Software
Softwares are capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and
are amortised over the period of license. Intangible Assets are amortised at straight line basis

as follows:

Software 3 years




RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
CIN: U74999DL2016PLC309327
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(iii) Leases
As a lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset at cost with a corresponding lease liability, except
for leases with term of less than twelve months (short term) and low-value assets in accordance
with Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’.

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs etc.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-
line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-
of-use assets. =

For lease liabilities at the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at thatdate. The [ease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined, if that
rate is not readily determined, the lease payments are discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate.

For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

(iv) Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

(v) Financial Assets
(a) Classification of financial assets at amortised cost
The Company classifies its financial assets at amortised cost only if both of the following
criteria are met:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest.

- Financial assets classified at amortised cost comprise trade receivables, loans, investment in




RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
CIN: U74999DL2016PLC309327
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

preference shares, bonds, debentures and government securities.

(b) Classification of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) comprise:

- Equity securities (listed and unlisted) which are not held for trading, and for which the
Company has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise changes in fair value
through OCI rather than profit or loss. These are strategic investments and the Company
considers this classification to be more relevant.

- Debt securities where the contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest and the
objective of the group's business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets. There are currently no debt securities which are carried at
FVOCI.

(c) Classification of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(d)

The Company classifies the following financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL):

- debt investments (bonds, debentures and mutual funds) that do not qualify for
measurement at either amortised cost or FVOCI,

- equity investments that are held for trading, and

- equity investments for which the entity has not elected to recognise fair value gains and
losses through OCI

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.




RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
CIN: U74999DL2016PLC309327
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(vi)

{vii)

{viii)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business and reflects group’s unconditional right to consideration (that
is, payment is due only on the passage of time). Trade receivables are recognised initially at
the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The Company
holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less loss allowance.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies the simplified approach
required by the Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
the initial recognition of receivables.

Inventories

Inventories including stores and spares are valued at the lower of cost and the net realisable
value. The Cost of individua! items of inventory are determined using weighted average
method. Cost of raw materials and traded goods comprises cost of purchases. Cost of work-
in-progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis
of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include all other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

At the inception of the contract, the Company identifies the goods or services promised in the
contract and assesses which of the promised goods or services shall be identified as separate
performance obligations. Promised goods or services give rise to separate performance
obligations if they are capable of being distinct. Where the customer expects supply of
refractory material and its related services together to produce the steel, the management
has determined that both supply of goods and services are not distinct and the arrangement
is considered to have only one single performance obligation.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of
transaction price allocated to that performance obligation, which is the expected
consideration to be received, to the extent that it is highly probable that there will not be a
significant reversal of revenue in future periods. If the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, at the inception of the contract, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer.
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(a)

(b)

Sale of products

The Company manufactures and sells a range of refractories, monolithics, bricks and ceramic
paper. Revenue from sale of products is recognised when the control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the customer and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the customer, and either the customer has accepted the products in
accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Company
has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. No significant
element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of 30 days to
90 days, which is consistent with market practice. A receivable is recognised when the goods
are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Sale of Services

Revenue from services is recognised over time, using an input method to measure progress
towards completion of service, because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Company.

The Company recognises contract liabilities for consideration received in respect of
unsatisfied performance obligations and reports these amounts as other liabilities. Similarly,
if the Company satisfies a performance obligation before it receives the consideration, the
Company recognises either a contract asset or a receivable, depending on whether something
other than the passage of time is required before the consideration is due.

2.4 Summary of other accounting policies

This note provides a list of other accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial
Statements to the extent they not already been disclosed above. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(i)

(i)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”).

The Board of Directors, together with Managing Director has been identified as being the
Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”). CODM evaluates the performance of the Company
based on the single operative segment for the purpose of allocation resources and evaluating
financial performance.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Financial Statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates {‘the functional currency’). The

Company’s operations are primarily in India. The Financial Statements are presented in Indian
rupee {Rs.), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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(iif)

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences arising on foreign currency borrowings are presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within Other Income/Expense
as appropriate.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

Income Taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
Financial Statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to
the end of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually
paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Financial assets
Classification and initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the asset. The Company
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. The Company
classifies the financial assets in the following measurement categories:

e Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through profit or loss, or
through other comprehensive income)
e Those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset (excluding trade receivables
which do not contain a significant financing component) at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in Statement of Profit or Loss.




RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
CIN: U74999DL2016PLC309327
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

B. Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL):

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and
those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Financial assets are designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss
when the same are managed by the Company on the basis of their fair value and their
performance is evaluated on fair value basis in accordance with a risk management or
investment strategy of the Company. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

¢. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCl) if these
financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate
method.

C. Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised only when
e The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
or

e Retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.
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(vii)

(viii)

When the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such
cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not
derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the
Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control
of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing
involvement in the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset to another entity.

The Company’s financial liabilities includes borrowings, lease liability, trade and other
payables.

Classification, initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities carried at fair
value through profit or loss) are deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition
of financial liability. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate {‘EIR’) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised.

De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other
income or finance cost.

Fair Value Measurement
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial
Statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

(ix) Derivative financial instruments

The Company acquires forward contracts to mitigate the risk arising from foreign currency
exposures. These forward contracts are designated as derivative financial instruments.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date of the derivative contract is
entered into and subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of reporting period.
The consequent gains/ losses, arising from subsequent re-measurement, are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, unless the derivative is designated as hedging instrument and
hedging relationship is established with the item being hedged.

(x) Provisions and contingent liabilities
a) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

b) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or oy o>
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a preserg@/-;/‘_‘“‘x._

=




RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
CIN: U74999DL2016PLC309327
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(xi)

(xii)

obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss as other gains/{losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Employee benefits

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The liability recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in
equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

The Company’s contribution to provident fund, national pension scheme and employees’
state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, based on the amount of contribution}&qﬁedffﬁ

——
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be made and when services are rendered by the employee. The Company has no further
obligations under these plans beyond its monthly contributions.

Other Benefits - Compensated Absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12
months from the end of the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The
obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated
absences as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond
12 months from the end of the year end are treated as other long-term employee benefits.
The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at
the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the year in which they arise. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the
balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is
expected to occur.

Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees
render the service.

(xiii) Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(xiv) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use

or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure’ on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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(xv)

(xvi)

(i

—

(ii)

Other income
Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received, and the Company will comply with required
conditions. Export incentive under Remission of Duties and Taxes on Export products
(RODTEP), Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS) and duty drawback are accrued
when no significant uncertainties as to the amount of consideration that would be derived
and as to its ultimate collection exist.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is disclosed as interest income within other
income. Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCl is
recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-
impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset {after deduction of the loss allowance)

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

® the profit attributable to owners of the Company
° by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial
year

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

e the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.




RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
CIN:- U74999D12016PLC309327
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(X in lakhs)
3 Property, plant and equipment
Particulars Land Plant and Computer  Buildings Furniture & Office Total
(Lease hold)  machineries* Fixtures Equipment

Gross Block
As at April 01, 2023 314.79 2,011.41 36.94 317.12 22.02 3.80 2,706.08
Additions - 206.03 34.51 3.34 . - 243.88
As at March 31, 2024 314.79 2,217.44 71.45 320.46 22.02 3.80 2,949.96
Additions . 111.00 146.85 43,14 0.00 5.29 306.28
Disposals . 18.80 - 2.79 - 21.59
As at March 31, 2025 314.79 2,328.44 199.50 363.60 19.23 9.09 3,234.65
Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 01, 2023 77.20 501.65 21.00 43.52 7.78 2.38 653.55
Charge for the year 14.96 141.14 10.78 10.53 2.09 0,72 180.22
Depreciation on assets disposed off - - - - = - -
As at March 31, 2024 92.16 642.79 31.78 54.05 9.87 3.10 833.77
Charge for the year 14.97 152.65 33.68 11,33 2.09 0.59 215.31
Depreciation on assets disposed off - - 14.83 - 148 - 16.31
As at March 31, 2025 107.13 795.44 50.63 65.38 10.48 3.69 1,032.77
Net Black
As at March 31, 2024 222.62 1,574.65 39.67 266.41 12.15 0.69 2,116.18
As at March 31, 2025 207.66 1,533.00 148.87 298.22 8.75 5.40 2,201.88

*  The Company has made capacity expansion of Plant situated at Lamtara, Katni (MP) and have invested in Plant and machinery, Buildings, Furniture
& fixtures, Office equipment, Computer etc. in year 2018-19 and 2019-20.

The Company is eligible for Investment Promotion Assistance (IPA} under "Madhya Pradesh Nivesh Protsahan Yojna -2014 {MP Investment Promotion
Assistance Scheme -2014)" for which registration has completed with MP industrial Development Corporation {Government of Madhya Pradesh
Undertaking), namely MPIDC. MPIDC has admitted permission for IPA vide his letter No. 183/MPIDC/FISCLE INCENTIVE/2020/6987 Dated Novemnber 03,
2020 on Investment in Plant and machinery of Rs. 1,980 Lakhs are admissible Investment upon which Rs. 792 Lakhs are Basic eligible IPA is claimable in
next 7 years for period May 09, 2019 to May 08, 2026, subject to fulfilment of predefined terms and conditions as per MPIDC Scheme.

Second tranche of IPA has been released for year 2020-21 vide letter No. letter No. 1262/MPIDC/F 1./1PA/ Dated July 15, 2022 of Rs. 113 Lakhs and First
tranche of IPA has been released for year 2019-20 vide letter No. 1262/MPIDC/F.1./IPA/17 Dated January 07, 2022 of Rs 66.67 Lakhs,

IPA received is adjusted from the Gross block of the Plant and machinery in the previous years and depreciation is calculated post adjustment for IPA,
Grant of FY 2022-23 which is not yet received and due to uncertainity of realisation, the Company has not booked the incentive.

4  Right-of-use-asset

This note provides information for leases where the Company is a lessee, The Company has taken on lease plant and machinery and motor

vehicles.
As at As at
Particul Not
SIS 9t | March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
(i} |Amount recognised in balance sheet
The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:
Right-of-use assets
Plant and Machinery 164,39 219.19
Motor vehicles 4.71 4.58
Total 169.10 223.77
Lease Liabilities
Current 65.66 68.04
Non-Current 146.97 208.29
212.63 276.33
Movement in Lease liabilities:
Balance at the beginning of the year 276.33 32877
Additions during the year 5.15 -
Payments during the year (including interest on lease liabilities) (92.04) {80.16)
Finance cost 23.18 2772
Total 212.62 276.33
Addition to the right-of-use assets during the year were Rs.5.91 lakhs (March 31, 2024:Rs. Nil lakhs).
Net disposal of right -of -use assets during the year were Rs.0.76 lakhs (March 31, 2024:Rs. Nil lakhs).
(ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Year ended Year ended
Particul Not:
e °t¢ | march 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Interest expense (included in finance costs} 30 23.18 27.72
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets . 31 59.81 60.75
Expense relating to short-term leases {included in other expenses) 32 34.90 -
Total 117.89 88.48

m ,

(i) In applying Ind AS 116, the Company has used the fi ing practical exp
‘Accounting for operating leases with a lease term of less than 12 months treated as short-term leases

(iv) 'Extension and Termination aption:

consent of lessor and lessee
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{X in lakhs)
5  Capital Work-in-Progress
Particulars S
As at April 01, 2023 149.77
Additons 23348
Capitatised 243.88
As at March 31, 2024 139.37
Additions 127.32
Capitalised 254.53
As at March 31, 2025 12.16
Aging of Capital Wark-in-Progress as at March 31, 2025 Total
Particular 0-1 Year 1-2 Years|  2-3 Years >3 Years|
Buildings 7.08 . . . 7.09
Plant & equipment 5.07 - . - 5,07
Tatat 12.16 - - - 12.16
ing of Capital Work-in-Progress as at March 31, 2024 Tatal
Particular 0-1 Year 1-2 Years  2-3 Years >3 Years
Buildings 8.70 030 - . 9.00
Plant & equipment 130.37 - - - 130.37
Total 139.07 0.30 - - 139.37

* There are no projects as on March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Nil) whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cast compared to
its original plan

6  Other Intangible Assets (Computer Software)
|Pafti|:ul.1fs Rs. in lakh|

Gross Block

As at April 01, 2023 1112
Additions

Disposals .
As at March 31, 2024 11.12
Additions -
Disposals 1.98
As at March 31, 2025 9.14
Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 01, 2023 1.49
Charge for the year 185
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2024 3.34
Charge for the year 1.68
Di i 1.98
As at March 31, 2025 3.04
Net Black

As at March 31, 2024 7.78

As at March 31, 2025 6.10
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{% in lakhs)
3 As at As at
RaRtichlars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Mon - current assets:
7 Other financial assets
Unsecured & considered good
Security deposit 12.74 1145
12.74 1145
8 Other non-current assets
Prepaid expenses 251 3.91
Capital advances 1122 .
13.73 3.91
9 inventories
Raw materials 1,770.07 938.90
Work - in - progress 152.05 48.70
Finished goads 351.31 305.28
Trading stock . 0.17
Stores and spares 188 89 107.34
2,462.32 1,400.39
10 Current financial assets
{i) Trade receivable
- Undisputed trade receivable - considered good 1,026.70 1,330.73
- Trade receivables from cantract with customer-related parties (Refer note 40) 708.09 511.68
Undisputed trade receivable - which have significant increase in credit risk {45.49) (154.64)
1,689.30 1,687.77
Trade receivables aging schedule March 31, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from the due date
Not Due Less than 6 Months - 1-2 23 More than Total
6 months 1 year years years 3 years
Undisputed trade receivables
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 1,132.88 377.70 55.15 84.44 77.41 7.21 1,734.79
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — with credit risk - - - (38.28), (7.21) {45.49)
Total 1,132.88 377.70| 55.15 84.44) 39.13] = 1,689.30{
Trade bles aging schedule March 31, 2024
Particulars [ for following periods from the due date
Not Due Less than 6 Manths - 1-2 23 More than Total
6 months 1 year years years 3 years
Undisputed trade recevables
{i) Undisputed Trade receivables - cansidered good 920.64 530.26 104.05 251.68 3114 464 1,842.41
{ii} Lnd d Trade Beceivables = with credit risk - - - (118.86) (31.14) {4.64) {154.64)
Total 920.64| 530.26| 104.05 132.81' * - 1,687.77
{i)) Cash & cash equivalent
Balances with banks
-in Current accounts 21685 0.10
216.95 0.10
(1) Other Financial Assets
-Security Deposits 1167 16.67
-Loans and advances to employees 430 0.44
15.97 17.11
1 Current tax assets
Advance Tax (Net of provision of Rs. 273.33 Lakhs) 0.09
0.09 -
12 Other current assets
Prepaid expenses 3.20 348
Balance with statutory authorities 110.92 29.89
Other advances 12.65 13.27
126.77 46.65




RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
CIN:- U74999D12016PLC309327
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(X in lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2024

As at

Particulars March 31, 2025

13 Equity share capital

Authorised

2,00,00,000 {March 31, 2024 - 2,00,00,000) Equity shares of

Rs. 10 each) 2,000.00 2,000.00
2,000.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up

2,00,00,000 (March 31, 2024 - 2,00,00,000} Equity shares of

Rs. 10 each fully paid up) 2,000.00 2,000.00

Notes:

a. Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 20,000,000 2,000.00 20,000,000 2,000.00
Addition during the Year - - - -
At the end of the year 20,000,000 2,000.00 20,000,000 2.,000.00

b. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs.10 per share. Each equity shareholder is entitled to one vote
per share.

In the event of winding-up of the Company, the equity shareholders shall be entitled to be repaid remaining assets of the company after
distribution of all preferential amounts in the ratio of the amount of capital paid up on such equity shares.

c. Equity shares held by holding company

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of Shares % of holding  No. of Shares % of holding
RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited (A wholly awned 20,000,000 100% 20,000,000 100%

subsidiary of RHI Magnasita India Limited)*

* Including shares held by nominees of the company

d. Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for cansideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period

of five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date - Nil
e. Details of shareholding of promoters

As at March 31, 2025

Name of Promotors No. of shares [ Change during the No. of % change during the
at the year shares at the year
beginning of end of the
the year r
AHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited (A wholly pwned 20,000,000 20,000,000 0%
subsidiary of RHI Magnesita india Ltd)*
As at March 31, 2024
Name of Promotors No. of shares | Change during the No. of % change during the
at the year shares at the year
beginning of end of the
the year year
RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited (A wholly owned| 10,200,000 9,800,000 | 20,000,000 49%
subsidiary of AHI Magnesita India Ltd]*
Seven Refractories GmbH 9,800,000 {9.800.000i {100%}

f. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at March 31, 2025
No. of Shares % holding
20,000,000 100%

As at March 31, 2024
No. of Shares % holding
20,000,000 100%

RH! Magnesita India Refractaries Limited {A wholly owned
subsidiary of RH| Magnaesita India Limited)*

* Including shares held by nominees of the company

Nate: As per recards of the Company, including its register of sharehalders/members and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.




RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(%in lakhs)
Particulars et Asal
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
14 Other equity
(i) Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 732,38 141,53
Add: Profit for the Year 621.40 590.86
Balance at the end of Year 1,353.79 732.39
{ii) Comprehensive Income
Balance at the beginning of the year 272 2.68
Additian during the year - Actuarial Gain & Losses on Defined
Benefit Obligation {2.99) 0.04
Balance at the end of Year {0.27) 2.72
1,353.52 735.11
Non - current liabilities
15 Financial liabilities
{i) Borrowings
Secured at amortised Cost
Loan from banks
- Term Loan 347.83 877.19
- Less : Current maturities of long term borrowings {Including
accrued interest} (347.83) (535.23)
- 341.96

Term Laan

Term loan of Rs 347.83 Lakh {March 31, 2024: Rs. 880,20 Lakh ) is secured by equitable martgage of factory Land & Building and Plant &
machinery, which carries interest rate ranging fram 9.75% p.a. to 10.1% p.a. It is further secured by first charge over movable and immovable
fixed assets of the company. It is repayable in quarterly instalment ranging from Rs. 66 Lakh to Rs 132 Lakh,

16 Employee benefit obligations

Gratuity (Refer note 41)
Leave encashment {Refer note 41)

17 Deferred tax assets / {liahilities) (net)

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Provisions for employee benefits

Provision for doubtful debts

Right-of-use assets

QOthers*

Deferred tax liabilities

* Includes deferred tax created on MSME payable

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Liability:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Unabsorbed depreciation and business losses

Provisions for employee benefits

Provision for doubtful debts

Right-of-use assets

Other temporary differences

Deferred tax in Statement of Profit and Lass

Temporary difference of liabilities in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax in Total Comprehensive Income

18 Other non-current liabilities

Deposit from employees

Current liabilities
19 Financial liabilities

{i) Borrowings
- from bank cash credit
- Current maturities of long term borrowings {including accrued interest)*

Cash credit

20.85
1157
- 32.42
(162.24) (145.81)
23.94 2167
11.45 38.92
10.96 13.23
87.60 {0.76)
{28.29) {72.75)
16.43 {15.55)
- (17.91)
227) 10.05
27.47 29.87
227 209
(88.35) .
(44.45) 8.55
1.00 {0.02)
{43.45) 8.53
11.71
11.71
; 82.22
347.83 535,23
347.83 617.45

Cash Credit is secured by hypothecation of stocks of raw material, semi finished goads, finished goads, stare & spares, hook debts and
movable assets of the company and carries interest rate in the range of 9.18% to 10 50% p.a. It is repayable on demand. Undrawn borrowing

limit as on March 31, 2025 is Rs. 2,000 Iakhs {March 31, 2024: 418.78 |akhs)

Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost and therefore interest accrued on current borrowings are included in the respective

amounts.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Z in lakhs)
19 Financial liabilities (continued}
{ii} Trade payables
-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises 447.68 344,48
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 1,666.47 669.95
-Trade Payables to related parties (Refer note 40) 627.07 330.26
2,741.22 1,344.69
Disclosure of sundry creditors under current liabilities is based on the information available with the company regarding the status of
suppliers as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule March 31, 2025
Outstanding for fallowing period fram due date of payment
More
Particul
articulars Less than 3 1-2 years 2-3 years than 3 Total
year
years
[i) MSME 447 68 447 68
(ii) Others 2,12032 20.89 41.73 11060 2,293 54
(i) Disputed dues- MSME - S
{iv) Disouted dues- Others - . - . -
TOTAL 2,568.00 20.89 41.73 110.60 2,741.22
Trade Payables Ageing Sched le March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following period from due date of payment
. More
Particul;
articutars e :::“ B 1-2 years 2-3 years than3 Total
L years
(i) MSME 344.48 344.48
{ii) Others 794.08 76.91 7895 5027 1,000.21
{iii) Disputed dues- MSME .
(iv] Disputed dues- Others . . - . -
TOTAL 1,138.57 76.91 7895 50.27 1,344.69
{iiii} Other financial liabilities
- Liability for capital assets 5.68 62,84
- Employee's benefits payable 44,59 74.70
- Interest payable - others 23.45 14,93
- Unspent amount of CSR (Refer note 42} . 0.79
- Security depaosits from customers 2.00 1.93
75.72 155.19
20 Contract liabilities
Advances from customers 5835 2477
58.35 24.77
21 Employee benefit obligations
Gratuity (refer note 41) 3431 3.89
Leave encashment (refer note 41) 2279 207
57.10 5.96
22 Other current liabilities
Statutory liabilities 4071 44.86
Cther payable - 0.33
40.71 45.19
23 Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for Income tax (Net of Advance tax of Rs. Nil Lakhs (March 265
31, 2024: 222 44 Lakhs)) =
B 2.65

Net current tax liability




RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
CIN:- U74993DL2016PLC309327
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

% in lakhs)
particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
24 Revenue from aperations
Revenue from contract with customers 12,726.25 10,090.01
12,726.25 10,090.01
24.1 Disaggregated revenue information
Sale of products

Refractories 11,769.63 9,102,82
Traded goods 679.99 480.04
12,449.62 9,582.86
Sale of Services 276.63 507.15
276.63 507.15
12,726.25 10,090.01

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time 12,726 25 10,090.01
Total Revenue from contract with customers 12,726.25 10,090.01

24.2

243

244

Contract balances
The following table provides information abaut receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contract with
customer

As at As at
March 31, 2025 - March 31, 2024
Trade receivables 1,689.30 1,687.77
Contract liabilities 58.35 24.77
Recanciling the amount of revenue recognised in statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contract price 12,726.97 10,098.66
Adjustments:
Rebate and Discount (0.72) (8.65)
Revenue from operations 12,726.25 10,090.01
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation {unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are as
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advances from customer 58 35 24.77
58.35 24.77

Management expects that the entire transaction price allotted to the unsatisfied contract as at the end of the reporting
period will be recognised as revenue during the next financial period.
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{X in lakhs)
N For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
25 Other incame
Interest income from bank/others
- on others 076 0.74
- Income tax - 5.65
Scrap sales & others 7.585 6.51
Miscellaneous income 4.35 -
12,66 12.90
26 Cost of material consumed
Opening stock 938.90 959.86
Add: Purchases 9,792.81 6,522.54
Less: Closing stock 1,770.07 938.90
Cansumption 8,961.64 6,543.50
27 Purchase of stack-in trade 612.37 412,30
612.37 412.30
28 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Opening Stock
-Wark-in-progress 4870 26.77
-Finished goods 30528 158.62
-Traded goods 017 037
354.15 185.76
Closing Stock
-Work-in-progress 152.05 48.70
-Finished goods 35131 305,28
-Traded goods - 0.17
503.36 354.15
Change in Inventories {149.21} (168.39)
29 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages, allowances & commission 491.44 529.37
Contribution to Provident & other funds 15.06 14.84
Gratuity & Leave encashment 15.57 11.02
Staff welfare expenses 6.01 9.68
528.08 564.91
30 Finance costs
Interest on
(i) Term loans 55.36 101.23
{ii) Cash Credits 895 5.96
- Others 342 .
- Interest expenses on MSME 852 14.93
- Interest expenses on lease liabilities 23.18 27.72
- Interest paid on Income Tax 6.15 -
105.58 149.84
31 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on tangible assets 21531 180.22
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets 59.81 60.75
Amartization on intangible assets 168 1.85

276.80 242.82
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Xin lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

32 Other expenses

Consumption of stores & spare parts
Power and fuel
Packing freight & transport
Repairs ta buildings
Repairs to machinery
Repairs others
Rent (refer note 4)
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Payment to the auditors

- Statutory Audit fees

- Limited Review fees

- Tax Audit Fees

- Other Services

- for reimbursement of expenses
Advertisement & publicity
Foreign exchange fluctuations
Travelling & conveyance
Professional & Legal fees
Application services expenses
Royalty expenses
Commission
Bad Debts written off
Provision for Doubtful Debt
Miscellaneous expenses
0id balances written off
CSR expenses
Fixed asset written off

33 Tax expense

Current tax
Deferred tax

Tax reconciliation

Profit as per statement of profit and loss
Enacted tax rate

Tax should be

Reconciliation item

Permanent disallowance of the expenditure

Others

34 Earnings per share

Profit after tax

Weighted average of number of equity shares

autstanding during the year
Nominal value of Equity Share {Rs)

Basic and Diluted earnings per share (Rs.)

2407 26.56
150.17 145.97
58149 406.57
439 2.40
4375 50.35
558 .
3490 -
295 6.57
13.15 10.38
5.50 425
375 375
150 1.00
2.75 0.90
057 0.41
018 0.27
19.34 25.30
8091 63.82
49.09 22.04
317.45 446.96
63.34 26.04
3177 117,73
143.10 0.60
(109.16) 118.66
5867 60.69
278 .
15.10 9.31
528 -
1,552.37 1,550.53
273.33 225.08
(43.45) {8.55)
229.88 216.55
851.28 807.40
2517% 25.17%
214.25 20321
1399 7.57
1.63 5.79
214.25 203.21
Unit of Measurement
Rupees in lakhs 62140 590.86
Number 20,000,000 20,000,000
Rupees 10 10
Rupees 311 2.95
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{X in lakhs)
35 Contingent liabilities:
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Bank Guarantee 122.23 615.82
122.23 615.82
36 Capital commitments
As at As at

a7

38

39

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Estimated amount of Contract remaining to be executed on capital account and
not provided for {net of capital advances) 3.73

3.73

Segment Information

Operating Segments

The Company is primarily engaged in a single operating segment of manufacture and sale of Refractory and hence this is the only

reportable primary business segment
The disaggregation of revenue by geography is set out in the tables below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Domestic 12,388 12 9,767.19
Export 338.13 32282
Total 12,726.25 10,090.01

Revenue from 3 customers regresent Rs. 4,914.36 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: 1,620.15 Lakhs) of the Company's total revenue

Impairment Review

Assets are tested for impairment whenever there are any internal or external indicators of impairment. Impairment test is performed at
the level of each Cash Generating Unit {‘CGU’) or groups of CGUs within the Company at which the assets are monitored for internal
management purposes, within an operating segment. The impairment assessment is based on higher of value in use and value from sale
calcutations. During the year, the testing did not result in any impairment in the carrying amount of other assets. The measurement of the
cash generating units’ value in use is determined based on financial ptans that have been used by management for internal purposes. The

planning horizon reflects the assumptions for short to- mid-term market conditions,

Key ians used in value-i calculations are:-

{i) Operating margins {Earnings before interest and taxes),
(i} Discount Rate

(iii) Growth Rates and

(iv) Capital Expenditure

Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date

No adjusting or significant non adjusting events have accurred between the reporting date and date of authorization of financial
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40 Related Party Disclosures
{a) List of related parties

i.  Holding and ultimate holding campany
The Company i ¢ fled by the foll;

Type Place of Incorporation Ownership interest {in %)
Name
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

1RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited Holding Company India 100% 100%

RHI Magnesita Ind mited Intermediate Holding Company India 0% 0%

IP-Hi Magnasita GmbH |Ultimate Holding Company Austria 0% 0%
ii. Directors of the Company

Dr. Vijay Sharma {upto November 11 2024)

Mr. Parmod Sagar (w.e f. January 05, 2023)

Ms. Vijaya Gupta (upto April 03, 2024)

Mr. Azim Syed (w.e.f. May 24, 2024)

Mr. Gustavo Lucio Gancalves Franco {w.e f. luly 14, 2023)

Mr. Nazim Sheikh {w.e.f. November 6, 2024)
iii. Key Managerial Personnel {(KMP})

Mr. Sanat Ganguli — Manager

Mr. Manoj Gupta- Chief Financial Officer (w.e f. June 01, 2024)

Mr. Abhishek Bajaj — Chief Financial Officer (w.e f May 29, 2023 till May 24, 2024)

Ms. Kirti Bajaj - Company Secretary (w.e.f February 08, 2024) — ]

cb(g,\i en !-\‘1_‘.‘_..\-

iv. Fellow subsidiaries with whom the Company had transactions
AHI Magnesita D.o.0 (Formerly known as Seven Refractories D.o o)

Refractory Intellectual Property GmbH & Co KG

Sapref Refractory Products Ltd

<.
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rd




RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
CIN:- U74999DL2016PLC309327
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{Rin lakhs)
Note 40 Contd:
{b) Related Party Transactions
Particulars Relationship M e
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sales
RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited Holding company 888.60 1,620.15
RHI Magnesita India Limited intermediate Holding Company 2,213.49 550.32
AHI Magnesita GmbH Ultimate Holding Company 45.66 .
Purchases
RHI Magnesita India Limited Intermediate Holding Company 398.31 80.61
RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited Holding company 77.03 8031
RHI Magnesita D.o.a. {Formerly known as Seven Refractories D.o.0) |Fellow subsidiary - 6991
Rental expense
RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited Holding company 79.63 79.63
Royalty expense
Refractory Intellectual Property GMbH & Co KG Fellow subsidiary 53.94 -
RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited Holding company . 150
RHI Magnesita GmbH Ultimate Holding Company 9.40 .
Seven Refractories GmbH Fellow subsidiary . 6.16
Management services
RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited Holding company 47.44
Commission on sales
RH! Magnesita India Refractories Limited Holding company 13.47 117.13
Sapref Refractory Products Ltd Fellow subsidiary 31.77 .
Recovery of collections by related party
RHI Magnesita India Limited Intermediate Holding Company 59.10 -
RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited Holding company 11144
Refund of collections to related party
RHI Magnesita India Limited Intermediate Holding Company 91.64
RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited Holding company 193.61 -
Purchase of capital assets
RHI Magnesita d.o.o. (Formerly known as Seven Refractories Fellow subsidiary 22.46
Expenses reimbursement {Received/(Paid)}
RHI Magnesita India Limited* intermediate Holding Company {112.11) {27.06)
RHI Magnesita GmbH Ultimate Holding Company 15.36
* this includes allocation of common cost
Information and technology expenses
RHI Magnesita GmbH Ultimate Holding Company 5.96
Salary and perquisites
Mr. Ayush Jain Key Managerial Personnel - 11.74
Director's sitting fees
Mr. Vijay Sharma Key Managerial Personnel 325 2.50
{c) Outstanding balances
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties:
Year ended Year ended

|Particulars

March 31, 2025

_March 31,2024 |

Trade Payables:

RHI Magnesita India Limited Inter Holding C 470.23 2452
Sapref Refractory Products Ltd Fellow subsidiary 28.59 .
RHI Magnesita D.a.0 {Formerly known as Seven Refractories D.0.0) |Fellow subisidiary 54,31 104.42
RH! Magnesita India Refractories Limited Holding company 11.64 20132
Refractary Inteflectual Property GmbH & Co KG Fallow subsidiary 48.23 .
RHI Magnesita GmbH Ultimate Holding Company 14.07

Total Trade payables to related parties 627.07 330.26
Trade Receivables:

RHI Magnesita India Limited Holding Company 503.00 24220
RHI Magnesita India Refractories Limited Holding company 162.23 269.48
RHI Magnesita GmbH Uitimate Holding Company 42.86 .
Total Trade receivables from related party 708.09 511.68
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{% in lakhs)

41 Post employment benefits

{a) Defined contribution plans
The Company has certain defined contribution plans including provident fund, employee state insurance and national pension scheme.
Contributions are made to provident fund for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to
registered provident fund administered by the government. Contributions are made to employee state insurance for employees at the rate of
3.25% of basic salary as per regulations. Defined cantributions are made to national pension funds. The obligation of the Company is limited to
the amount contributed and it has na further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year towards
contribution to provident and other funds is:

As at March 31, As at March 31,

2025 2024
Contribution to provident and other funds:
Employer Contribution to Employee state insurance 027 039
Employer Cantribution to Provident fund 1478 14.44
15.05 14.83

(b) Defined benefit plan
{i) Compensated absences
The leave obligation cover the Company's liability for earned leave and sick leave. The entire amount of provision of Rs. 22.79 lakhs is presented as
current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past
experience, the Campany does not expect all employees to avail the full amount of accrued leaves or require payment for such leave within the

As at March 31,  Asat March 31,
2025 2024

Leave obligation not expected to be settled within the next 12 months 19.24 11.57

{ii) Gratuity {non-funded)

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Employees who are in continuous service for
a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per
month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service

In the current year, entire amount of pravision of Rs. 34.30 lakhs is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees ta avail the full
amount within the next 12 months

{A) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation
As at March 31,  As at March 31,
2025 2024
Gratuity Gratuity
un funded un funded
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 24.73 21.72
Interest cost 158 160
Past service cost C .
Current service cost 4,58 5.69
Benefits paid (0.58) (4.22)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation 3.99 (0.06})
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 34.30 24.73
p r ized in the of profit and loss
Current service cost 4.58 5.68
Past service cost = -
Interest cost 1.58 1.60
p recognized in the it of profit and loss 6.16 7.29
Expense recognized in OCI
Actuarial loss on defined benefit obligation 3.99 {0.06)
3.99 {0.06)
A recognised in bal. sheet
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 34.30 24.73

Net asset / (liability) recognized in balance sheet {34.30) (24.73)
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(X in lakhs)
{B) Actuarial Assumptions:
i) Discounting Rate 6.40% 6.95%
. 10% for 1 year and  10% for 2 years
Fut
i) FuluceSalanvlineresse 8% thereafter  and 8% thereafter
iii) Retirement Age (Years) 58 58
iv) Ages Withdrawal Rate %
Up to 30 Years 10.00% 10.00%
From 31 to 44 years 10,00% 10.00%
Above 44 years 10.00% 10.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality rate for gratuity is based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience

(C) Expected contribution for the next 12 months

i) Service cost 552 4.58
i} Interest cost 2.02 1.58
Total 7.54 6.16

{D) The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 7.07 years as at March 31, 2025 {March 31, 2024: 7.15 years). The expected
maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity benefit is as follows:

Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

Years :
i} OtolYear 552 3.89
i) 1to2Year 2.78 238
iii) 2to3 Year 2.79 2.08
iv) 3to4 Year 3.29 2,07
v) 4to5 Year 3.69 245
vi) 6to 10years 39.84 30.69

Total 57.91 43.56

{E) Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligation
Discount rate
Impact of the change in discount rate

Impact due to increase of 0.50% {112) {0.79)
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 120 0.85

Impact of the change in salary increase
Impact due to increase of 0.50% 117 0.84
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (1.11) (0.79)

(F

Risk Exposures:

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Salary Increases: Actual salary increases will increase the plan’s liability. Increase in salary rate assurmption in future will also increase the liability.
Investment Risk: If the plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch and actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate
assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability

Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's liability

Martality and disability: Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities,
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42 Expenditure incurred on Corporate Sacial Responsibilities

(%in lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 15.10 9.31
b) Cumulative provision for unspent expenditure at the beginning of the year 0.79
) Amaunt spent during the year an:
i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset . -
if) On purposes other than (i} above 15.89 8.52
d} Pravision for unspent expenditure for the year . 0.79
e) Cumulative provision for unspent expenditure as at year end 0.79
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
1  School Renovation -

1510

2 Library for school education 8.52
3 PMCare + 0.79
15.10 9.31
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a3 Financial Risk Management

Financial instruments by category

I_ As at March 31, 2025 t_ A5 at March 31, 2024

FVPL [Fvoa Amortised cost FVPL TFvoa Amortised cost
Financial assets
(Cash and cash equivalents - - 216,95 - - 0.10
Trade Receivable - - 1,683.30 - 1,687.77
Dther financial assets . - 28.71 - - 28.56
Total financial assets - - 1,934.96 - - 1,716.43
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 347.83 959.41
Lease liabilities 212,63 276.32
Trade Payables 2,741.22 1,344.69
Other financial liabilities - - 75.72 155.19
Total financial liabilities « - 3,377.40 . - 2,735.62

Financial risk management objectives and palicies
{i) Financial risk factors

The Company's operational activities expose to various financial risks i.e. market risk, credit risk and risk of liquidity. The Company realizes that risks are inherent and integral aspect of any
business. The primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Company's senior management
oversees the management of these risks and devise appropriate risk management framewaork for the Company. The senior management provides assurance that the Company's financial risk
activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.

{ii) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under 3 financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables and advances to suppliers) and from its financing activities, including deposits and other financial instruments

To manage this, Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account factors such as credit track record in the market and past dealings with the Company for
extension of credit to customer Company monitors the payment track record of the customers. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. An impairment analysis is performed
at each year end on an individual basis for major customers. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in accounting policy. The Company evaluates the concentratian of risk with
respect to trade receivables as low, the trade receivables are located in several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets

43

Particulars Asat As st
Upto & months More than 6 months Upto 6 manths Maore than 6 h
Gross carrying amount {A) 1,510.58 224.21 1,450.90 391.51
Expected Credit Losses (B) - {45,49) - {154 64)
Net carrying amount (A-B) 1,510.58 178.72 1,450.90 236.87

Financial Risk Management {Continued}

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made
only with approved authorities. Credit limits of all authorities are reviewed by the management on regular basis. All balances with banks and financial institutions is subject to low credit risk due
to good credit ratings assigned to the Company. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is represented by the carrying value of each financial asset.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet
obligation when due and to close out market position. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under cammitted
credit lines, by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities, continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows

The table below analysed the maturity profile of the Campanies financial liabilities.

Particulars Payable on Demand Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

As at March 31, 2025

Borrowing 347.83 347.83
Other financial liabilities . 75.72 . 75.72
Trade payable & Other Payable - 2,741.22 -+ 2,741.22
Lease liabilities - 82.59 161.42 24401
Total - 3,247.36 161.42 3,408.78
As at March 31, 2024

Borrowing 82.22 535.23 341.96 959.41
Other financial liabilities - 15519 . 155.19
Trade payable & Other Payable 1,344.69 - 1,344.69
Lease liabilities - 83.47 239.69 323.16
Total 82.22 2,118.58 581.65 2,782.45
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Market Risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
risk. The company is exposed to the risk of movements in interest rate, inventory price and foreign currency exchange rate that
effects its assets, liabilities and future transaction. The companies is expased to the following key market risk

{i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest risk. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate relates primarily to the company's short term
borrowing obligation in the form of cash credit carrying floating interest rate

Fixed Rate Variable Rate Total

Particulars Borrowing  Borrowing Borrowing
As at March 31, 2025 347.83 B 347.83
As at March 31, 2024 877.19 82.22 959.41

Sensitivity Analysis: For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.

Sensitivity on variable rate borrowings Impact on of Profit and Loss (net of tax)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
- 062

Interest rate increase by 1%
Interest rate decrease by 1% . 062

{ii) Foreign Currency Risk :

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates, The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in fareign exchange rates relates primarily ta the Company’s foreign
currency denominated borrowings and foreign payables on account import of raw materials and other consumables.. This foreign
currency risk is covered by using foreign exchange forward contracts and currency swap contracts

The details of foreign currency {FC) exposure is as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
FCin Lakh R in Lakh FCin Lakh % in Lakh

Unhedged Foreign Currency

Trade Payables (EUR) 194 178.64 253 221.03
Trade Payables (USD) 418 355.77

Receivable

Trade Receivable (USD} 0.50 42.86 - -

Rate Sensitivity
Sensitivity analysis is computed based on the changes in the income and expenses in foreign currency upon conversion into
functional currency, due to exchange rate fluctuations between the previous reporting period and the current reporting period.

Particulars Increase / Impact an Statement of Profit and Loss (net of tax)
Decrease in For the year ended For the year ended
basis points March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
+ 50 basis (0.67) (0.83)
Euro Sensitivity points
- 50 basis 0.67 0.83
points
+ 50 basis 021
Dollar Sensitivity paoints
- 50 basis (0.21)

points
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Financial Instrument
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value. To provide an indication
abaut the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

Financial assets

As at As at
S.No |Particulars = March 31, 2025 = March 31, 2024 -
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amaunt Value
Financial assets designated at amortised cost
Non Current
Other financial assets 12.74 1274 1145 1145
Current
a) Trade receivables * 1,689.30 1,689.30 1,687.77 1,687.77
b} Cash & Cash Equivalents * 216.95 216.95 0.10 010
c) Bank balances other than (b) above* . . . .
d) Other financial assets* 15.97 15.97 17.11 17.11
1,934.96 1,934.96 1,716.43 1,716.43
Financial Liabilities
As at As at
S.No particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Carrying Fair Carryin, Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial liability designated at amortised cost
Non Current
- Borrowings - - 34196 341.96
- Lease liabilities 146.97 146.97 20829 208.29
Current
Borrowings* 347.83 347.83 617.45 617.45
Trade payables* 2,741.22 2,741.22 1,344.69 1,344.69
Lease liabilities 65.66 65.66 68.04 68.04
Other financial liabilities* 75.72 75.72 155.19 155,19
3,377.40] 3,377.40 2,735.62 2,735.62

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale.

* The carrying amounts are considered to be the same as their fair values due to short term nature.

Fair value hierarchy
Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Inputs ather than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs}).
Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, equity includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders and net
debt inciudes interest bearing loans and borrowings less current investments and cash and cash equivalents. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to safeguard
continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in ecanomic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The funding requirement is
met through a mixture of equity, internal accruals, long term borrowings and short term borrowings. The Company manitars capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total

capital plus net debt.

{n order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans

and borrowings that define capital structure reguirements.

Particulars e —
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Debt (i) 347.83 959.41
Lease liabilities 212,63 276.32
Cash & bank balances 216,95 0.10
Mt Debt 34350 1,235.64
Total Equity 3,353.52 2,735.11
Net debt to equity ratio (Gearing Ratia) 10.24%| 45.18%

{i) Debt includes long term and short term borrowings
e o
“SeNen !?9;,
v

s,
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Note 48:
Financzial performance ratios
Ratios MNumerator |Denominator Usitat March 31, 2025 March 32,2024 | % change Rea'sun ﬂ:" e }
Measurement {where variance is more than 25%|
1 Current ratiy Curreny assets Currant labilities Timed 133 1.38 21N
2 Debt equity rata Total dobt = Long term borrowlngs (Total equity Times 010 035| (70.37%]|Refer (a) below
ncluding current maturities +
Lurient barrowings
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings available for debt sorvice |Debrt service = interost & Times 162 1.83 | (14.38%)|Refor (3) below
= Profit after tax + finance costs + |Lpass Payments + Princigal
|depreciation and amartisation |Repaymionty
fapence
4 [Return on equity ratio Mot srofits after tives Average totl equity 2041%) 24 22%| {15 72%j|Refor (8] briow
5 [nventory turnover ratio Cast of Goads Sold {Cost of Average Inventaries of 4388 508 {3.94%)
Material Consumed + Purchases of Finished Goods, Stock-in-
stock-in-trade of traded goods+  |Process and Stock-in-Trade
Lhanges in Inventory]
6 Trade receivables turnover ratid Revenue from sale of products and AVETage accounts Times 754 568 32.69%{Refer () below
services recoivible
7 Trade payables turnaver ratio |Met purch of geod = Pureh, A ge Trade payables Times 461 414 1143%
i raw materials included in cast
al raw materials consumed +
Purchases of stock in trade
] Tiet capital turnover ratio Revenue fram sale of praducts and ‘Working capital = Current Timasy . 1131 1136 (0.40%)
} TViCes Ausets - Cusrent labilitios
9 INet profit ratio Met peafit alter Lax Rovenue from operatians Peseontage 5% 6% [18 62%}{Rofer (b bolaw
10 |Return on capita) employed Earning before interest and taxes Average capital employed Percentage 2553% 26.22% {2.64%) |Rales [b] below
= Net worth + Total debt +
|Daterred tax liability
Return gn investment Earniing before interest and taxes |Average total assets Percentage 15 21%) 16.44%|  (7.4B%)|Refer (b) below

(2) Due to repaymient of term loans feam banks amounting Rs. 528 Lakh in the current Voar
(b} Qverall Gross margin of the Company has declined during the year dus 1o Hgnificant increase in Alumina based raw material prices
(c) Trade recowvables tusnover ratio has improved dus to better collection from custemers.
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(% in lakhs)
Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supolier 2y at the end of each Accounting year 447,68 353.99
The amount of interest maid by the buyer in terms af section 16, of the Micro Smail and Medium Enterprises (Development) Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the,
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 1,307.57 860,07
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have besn paid but beyond the appointed day during the year] but without s
adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 852 14.33
The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and 23.45] 1493
Tha amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as abave are actually paid to the smuil|
E:ernme for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
Note: Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Management, This has been relied upon by the auditor
Additional regulatory information required by Schedule I
Barrowing secured against current assets
Name of the Bank Aggregate working capital limits Particulars Quarter ended Amount as per books | Amount disclosed as per Variance
sanctioned uarterly roturns
Debtors March 31, 2025 1,689.30 9390.00 699.30
Creditors March 31, 2025 {2,741.22)) 12,073.00) [668.22)
Net Total March 31, 2025 {1,051.92) {1,083.00] 31.08
Debtors Decembar 31, 2024 2.216.10 1,491.00 725.10
Creditors |December 31, 2024 (2,485.93) 12,307.00) 1175.93])
Net Total December 31, 2024 (269.83)| (816.00) 546.17
HDFC d .01
FEHARKLE 2000.00 Debiors [Seatembor 30, 2024 292518 2,07%6.00 853 19
Creditors 5 30, 2024 §2.345.06) 12.151.00) 1592 05)
Nat Total September 30, 2024 580.08 (75.00) 655.08
Debtors June 30, 2024 1.833.71 1.665.00 168.71
Creditors une 30, 2024 11,454.62) {2,345.00) {109 62,
Net Total June 30, 2024 379.09 320.00 55.09

Reasons for variances:

(a) The difference in debtors are due to adjustment made in the books of account which is not considered in OP statements filled with bankers (e.g. Debtors greater than 90 days and Inter company transactions not eligible for

drawing power calculation)

(b) The difference in creditors are due to adjustment made in the books of account which is not considered in DP statements filled with bankers. (e.g. Provisions are not eligible, Creditors related to stock are allowed in DP

calculation except Inter cornpany).
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{ii)
(iii)
(iv}
v)
(vi)

{vii)

viii)

(ix)
{x)
(xi)
{xii)

{xiii)

52

53

A ional regul y inf i quired by Schedule Il
The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property

The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Campanies Act, 1956

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary
shall: {a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any
guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the Company shall: {a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Uitimate
Beneficiaries) or {b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

There is na income surrendered or disclased as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the
books of account.

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current year or previous year

The Company has camplied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year

The borrowings abtained by the Company from banks have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were taken

The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties where the Company is a lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) are held in the name of the Company

Transfer pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of informatian and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under Sections 92-92F of the Income-
tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such infarmation and documentation to be contemporaneaus in nature, the Company is in the process of updating the documentation
for the international and domestic transactions entered into with the associated enterprise during the financial year and expects such records to be in existence latest by November 30,
2025, as required by law, The Management confirms that its international and domestic transactions are at arm'’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the
Financial Statements, particularly on the amount of tax expenses and that of provision for taxation.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever applicable

As per our report of even date

For 5 S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
Chartered Accountants RHI Magnesita Seven Refractories Limited
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